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BEFORE THE
' BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5557
TEIZA ESPINOZA LOMELI
508 Sheldon Avenue . : ‘ ‘
Vallejo, CA 94591 DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER

Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH | [Gov. Code, §11520]
119769

Respondent.

- FINDINGS OF FACT

_ 1. Onorabout November 4, 2015, Complainant Virginia K. Herold, in her official
capacity as the Executive Qfficer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,
filed Accusation No. 5557 against Teiza Espinoza meeli {Respondent) before the Board of
Pharmacy. (Accusation attached as Exhibit A.) |

2. On or about February 14, 2012, the Board of Pharmacy (Board) issued Pharmacy

Technician Registration No, TCH: 119769 to Respondent. The Pharmacy Technician Registration |-

was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 5557,

and expired on October 31, 2015, This lapse in licensure, however, pursuant to Business and
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Professions Code sections 118, subdivision (b), and 4300.1, does not deprive the Board of its
authority to institute or continue this disciplinary proceeding.

3.-  Onor about November 12, 2015, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class
Mail copies of Statement.to Resﬁondent, Accusation No. 5557, Request for Discovery, Notice of
Defense (2 blank copies), and Discovery Statutes (Government Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6,
and 11507.7) at Respondent's address of record which, pursuant to Business and Professions
Code section 4100, is required fo be reported and maintained with the Board. Respondent's

address of record was and is;

508 Sheldon Avenue
Vallejo, CA 94591,

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of
Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c) and/or Business & Professions Code section
124,

5. Government Code section 11506 states, in relevant part:

(¢) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the mer1ts if the respondent
files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a speciﬁc denial of all parts
of the accusation not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall
constitute a waiver of respondent’s right to a hearing, but the agency in 1ts discretion
may nevertheless grant a hearing.

6.  Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon her of

the Accusation, and therefore waived her right to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. 5557,

7. Cahforma Government Code sect:lon 1 152{) states, 1n relevant part:

(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the
hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions
or upon other evldence and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to
respondent,
8.  Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds.
Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on the
relevant evidence contained in the Defauli Decision Investigatory Evidence Packet in this matter,

as well as taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained

therein on file at the Board's offices regarding the allegations contained in Accusation No. 5557,
2
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finds that the charges and allegatidns in Accusation No. 5557, are separately and severally, found
to be true and correct by clear and convincing evidence.

9. Taking official notice of its own internal records, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 125.3, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation
and Enforcement is $1,777.50 as of January 13, 2016.

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES

1. . Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respdndént Teiza Espinoza Lomeli has
subjected her Pharmacy TecMcian Registration No. TCH 119769 to discipline.

2. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. |

3. The Board of Pharmacy is authorized to revoke R_espondent's Pharmacy Technicianr
Registration based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported
by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Investigatory Evidence Packet in this case.

a.  Conviction of a crime (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 3401, subd. (1)); |

b.  Violations of laws related to controlled substances (Bus. & Prof, Code, § 3401, subd.
6% | | -

c, Dishonest.or fraudulent act (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 3401, subd. ().
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ORDER

I'T IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 119769, issued to
Respondent Teiza Espinoza Lomeli, is revoked.

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (¢), Respondent may serve a
written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within
seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may
vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute,

This Decision shall become effective on March 17, 2016,

It is so ORDERED February 16, 2016.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.

Board President
90606360.D0C

_ DOJ Matter ID:SF2015900537  _ _ _ _ _ S o
Attachment:
Exhibit A: Accusation
4
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KamaLa D, HARRIS ~
Attorney General of California
DIANN SOKOLOFF _
Supervising Depuly Attorney General
'IT)'LMOTHY J. MCDONOUGH :
puty Attorney (eperal
State Bar No. 235850
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.O, Box 70550
QOakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-2134
Facsimile; (510) 622-2270
E-mail: Tim.McDenough@doj.ca.gov

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Acousation Against: Case No. 5557

TEIZA ESPINOZA LOMELI
508 Sheldon Avenue
Vallejo, CA 94591 ACCUSATION

Pharmacy Technicinn Registration No. TCH
119769 .

Respondent,

Complainant alleges:
. ]

PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her dfﬁcial capacity

“as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department-of Consumer Affairs, - —- - |

2. On or about February i4, 2012, the Board of Pharmacy issved Pharmacy Technician
Registration Number TCH 119769 to Teiza Espinoza Lomeli (Respondent). The Pharmécy '
Technician Registration was in full force and effect at all times releyant to the charges brought in
this Accusation, The Pharmacy Technician Registration will expire on October 31, 2015, unless

renewed. :
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3, This Accusation s brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the .
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. ‘

4,  Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & l"rof. Code, § 4600 ét seq;] and the Uniform Controlled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

5.  Section 4300 of the Code states, in relevant part:

"(n) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked.

"(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose default
has been entered or whose case hag been heard by the board and found guxlty, by any of the
following methods: '

~"(1) Suspending judgment,

"(2) Placing him or her upon probation.

"(3) Suspending his or her right to pracnce fora penod not exceeding one year,

"(4) Revokmg his or her license, '

"(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in ﬁ:s

discretion may deern proper,

"(e) The proceedings under this article shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 5

- | -(conmumencing with Section 11500) of Part-1 of Division-3-of the Government Code,-and the board|{ - -

shall have all the powers granted therein, The action shall be final, except that the propriety of the
action is subject to review by the superior court pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the Code of Civil

Procedure,”

6. Section 4300.] of the Code states:

"The expiration, oancellatmn, forfeitura or suspens:on of a board-issued license by
operation of law or by order or declsmn of the board or a court of law, the placement of 8 hcense

on & retired status, or the' vo]untm'y surrender of a livense by a licen,see shall not depnve the board '

2
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of jurisdiction to cormmenoce or proceed w1th any investigation‘ of, or action or disciplinary
proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending or revoking the licénse.*'
A STATUTES
7.  Section 4301 of the Code states, in relevant: .
"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procuréd by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake,
Unprofessional conduct shall inoludé, but is not fimited to, any of the following:

“"(a) Gross immorality,

"(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or otherwise, and

whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not.

"(§)} The violation of any of the statutes of thig state, or any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drgs.

"(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of convietion of a violation of Chapter 13
(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled

substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or

-dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of uhprofassional —condudt. In all other cases, the -

record of conviction shall be conclusive evidenoe only of the fact théit the conviction occurred,
The boerd may inquirs into the circumstances swrounding the commission of the crime, in order
to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not invelving controlled substances or
dangerous drugs, to determine if the 'coﬁvioﬁon is of an offense substantiafly related to the
qualifications, functiops, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or

a conviction following & pléa of nolo conténderé is deerned to be a conviction within the meening ‘

of this provision. The board may take aotion when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the

T3
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judgment of conviction has i?een afﬁnrﬁed Qp appeal or when an order granting probation is made

suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 12034 of
the Penal Code allowing the person to \n}ithéraw his or her plee of guilty and to enter a plea of not
guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, ror dismissing the aocusation, information, or

indictment.

"{0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
fede;al and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, iﬁc]uding regulationé established by
the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency,”

8. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of » personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a
crime or act shall be considered substantially retated to the qualifications, fonctions or duties ofa |
licensee or registrant if'to a .substantial degree it evidences present or poteniial unfitess of a
licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner
consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare."

9. Section 4022 of the Code states

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means aty drug or dsvice unsafe fo; self-usein
humans or animals, and includes the following:

_ "(a) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits dispensing without
preseription,” "Rx only,” or words of similar import. ‘

"(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution; federa! law restricts this device to sale
by or on the order of a ‘ ,“- "Rx only,” or words of similar import, the blank fo be filled
in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use or order use of the device.

"{c} Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully dispensed only on
prosoription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006."

i
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DRUGS

10, Code section 4021 states:

“Controlled substan@e‘ means any siabstance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section
11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code.” | '

1}, Valivmisa brend name for diazepam. Diazepam is a Schedule IV controlled
substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(9), and a
dangerous drug as designated by Business and Professions Code section 4022.

12, Soma és a brand name for Carisoprodol. Carisoprodol isa Schedule IV controlled
sﬁbstance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (g), and a |
dangerous drug as designated by Business and Professions Code section 4022,

13. Xaﬁax is a brand name for Alprazolam. A]prazolain is a Schedule IV controlied
substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(1), and a
dangerous drug as designated by Business and Professions Code section 4022,

14, Vieodin is a brand name for Hydrocodone with Acctaminophen. Hydrocodone is a
Schedule I controlied substance as designated by Health and Safe.tglr Code section ] 1055,
subdivision (b)(1){), anci a -danger'ous drug as designated by Business and Professions Code
section 4022, |

15, Promethazine with codeine is a Schedule V conirolied substance as designated by
Health and Safety Code section 11058, and a dangerous drug as designated by Business and
Professions Code seetion 4022, | ' |

e g;osT_RBg;_gg__y_ EBRY . . ]
16, Section 125.3 of the Code prox}ides, in relevant part, that the.Board may request the

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a vielation or vioiati’oﬁs of
the licensing act o pay & sum not to exceed the rcasonablen costs of the investigation and
enforoement of the cﬁsa, with fallure of the licentiate to comply subjecting the license to not being
renewed :oi' reinstated, If a case settles, recovery of investigation and enforcement costs may be
included-in a stipulated settiément. ' ' | ' '

i
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: -BACKGROUND
17, Om or about july 24, 2014, Vallgjo police officers conducted a traffic stop of a vehicle

registered to Respondent. Respondent was, a passenger in the vehicle, _-Oﬂ"icers smelled a strong
odor of marijuana cmanating from the car. The driver admitted that there was marijuana in the
car and presented a medical marijuana physician’s note to the officers, Officer determined that
the operator of the car had 8 suspended driver's license and an outstanding misdemeanor warrant
for his arrest, Officers searched the vehicle and located marijuana in two separate containers in
the center console, one 9 mm handgun and a magazine bontaining fifteen rounds lof ammunition
(9 mm) in a purse on the floor of the car, ahd one ammunition (9 mm) round in the driver’s side
of the car. Officers arrested Respondent and the driver of the car,!

18, On or about March 27, 2015, ina criminal proceeding entitled The People of the State
of California v.Teiza Espinoza Lomeli, in the Sclano County Superior Court, Case No.
YCR221566, Respondent, who was the registered owner of the car, was convicted, upon her plea |
of ne lo contendere, to one count of being an ocoupant with a concealed firearm iﬁ a vehiclg (Pen.
Code, § 25400, subd, (a)(3)), & misdemeanor, The court sentenced Respondent fo serve 16 days
in county jail, and placed her on probation for 3 years with various conditions including, but not

limited to, successfully completing a 8-hour counseling program relating to weapons,

19, - On or about August 15, 2014, officers for the Pinole Police Department responded to |

a CVS pharmacy becanss Respondent had been detained for theft of controlied substances, CVS

Loss Prevention Manager told responding officers that video surveillance showed that

- Respondent, a pharmacy technician, had removed prescription pill bottles from the cabinetand. - |

congealed them on her person, The Loss Prevention Manager further explained that be confronted
Respondent about the theft of prescription pills and that defendant admitted that she had been
diverting drugs from the pharmady since somstime in May of 2014, Specifically, she admitted to

stealing Norco (Vicodin), Carisoprodol {(Soma), Diazepam (Valium), Alprazolam (Xanax), and

! During the booking process, officers found one ammunition round (9 mm) in
Respondent’s wallet, ; : o . o

6
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May 2014; 100 Soma pills—three or four times a week—during a four month period; 250 Xanax

“action under Code section 4301, subdivision (1), in that she was convicted of a erime substantially

Y.

Promethazine with Codeine, ? Respondent;admitted that she stole 200 pilis of Soma
(Carisoprodol 350 mg), and 150 pills of Vicodin (Norco 10/325 mg), on August 15, 2014,
Further, Respondent adm_itte:d that she stok% from CVS the following: 9,500 Vicodin pills since

pills on one occasion; 300 Valium pills on one occasion; and Promethazine with Codeine on three

different occasions. 'Fmtherldefcndant admitted to the Loss Prevention Manager that she sold the
pills she stole t¢ a unidentified female, whom she referred to as “Pill Girl,” Afier reviewing a

transcript of the interview of defendant by the Loss Prevention Manager, the officers arrested

defendant.
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Conviction of & Crime)
(Bus. & Prof, Code § 4301, subd, (1))

20. Respondent has subjected her Pharmacy Technician Registration to disciplinary

relaied to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a pharmacy technician. The circumstances
are explained in paragraphs 17 and 18, above.
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Vielation of Laws Relating to Controlled Substance)
(Bus. & Prof, Code, § 4301, subd. (j))

a1 Respondent has subjected her Pharmacy Technician Registration to disciplinary
action under Code section 4031, subdivision (j), in that she violated state laws relating to

controlled substances, including Health and Safety Coc_le, section 11350, subdivision

_{a)(possessing controlled substances), The ciroumstanoes.are. more fully explained in paragraph _|

19, above.

it
i

? Defendant admitted to these thefts during a voluniary loss prevention interview -
conducted by the Loss Prevention Manager Another CVS employea was present during the

interview of defendant.
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THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{Dishonest or Fraudulent Act)
{Bus. & Prof Code, § 4301, subd. (1))

22. . Respondent has subjected her l-fharmacy Technician Registration to disciplinary
action under Code section 4301, subdivision (f), in that she stole medications and controlled
substances from her emp]oyer, CVS Pharmacy. The circumstances are expl_ained in paragraph 19,
above. | |

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters alleged in this
Accusation, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Registration Number TCH 119769,

E

issued to Teiza Espinoza Lomeli;

2, Ordering Teiza Espincza Lomeli fo pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs

of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code

section 125.3;
3 : Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper, -

DATED: ﬁ’% /i// S |

Board of Pharmagy

Department of Consumer Affairs
- Btate of Cafifornia
- 7 Complainant - -
SF2015900537
$0575885.doe
8.
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